
DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



BRIDGE
Federal-aid STBG-Bridge Program: 
Local and Off-system Bridge 2024 Application

Idaho Local Highway Jurisdictions 
Submittal Deadline - Hand Delivered or Postmark date of: January 18, 2024, 4:00 p.m. MST.

Local Highway Technical Assistance Council 
3330 Grace Street
Boise, Idaho 83703
208-344-0565
Fax 208-344-0789
www.lhtac.org

DRAFT



Bridge Application: Page 1 

BRIDGE 
INCLUDED IN THIS PACKET 

1. APPLICATION INFORMATION ................................................................................................. 2 
1.1 PROGRAM BACKGROUND ............................................................................................................................................... 2 

1.2 USE OF FUNDS ................................................................................................................................................................. 2 

1.3 ELIGIBILITY ....................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

1.4 SELECTION PROCESS ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 

2. APPLICATION CHECKLIST ........................................................................................................ 5 
2.1 CHECKLIST AND SUBMITTAL DEADLINE .......................................................................................................................... 5 

2.2 LHTAC FY24 BRIDGE APPLICATION COVER SHEET INSTRUCTIONS .................................................................................. 6 

3. APPLICATION ......................................................................................................................... 7 
3.1 LHTAC FY24 BRIDGE APPLICATION COVER SHEET ........................................................................................................... 7 

3.2 LHTAC FY24 BRIDGE APPLICATION QUESTION RATIONALE .......................................................................................... 11 

3.3 LHTAC FY24 BRIDGE APPLICATION SCORE SHEET ......................................................................................................... 14 

3.4 LHTAC FY24 BRIDGE APPLICATION RATING CRITERIA ................................................................................................... 15 

4.  SAMPLE DOCUMENTS ........................................................................................................ 16 
4.1 VICINITY MAP FOR BRIDGE PROJECT APPLICATION ....................................................................................................... 16 

4.2 SAMPLE RESOLUTION .................................................................................................................................................... 17 

4.3 SAMPLES OF PROPOSED PROJECT DESCRIPTION .......................................................................................................... 18 DRAFT



Bridge Application: Page 2 

BRIDGE 
1. APPLICATION INFORMATION
1.1 PROGRAM BACKGROUND

There are 4,259 bridges in Idaho. Of these, 2,479 are local bridges owned and operated by Local 
Highway Jurisdictions. Most twentieth century bridges were designed for a 50-year life span. Forty-one 
percent of the existing local bridges are 50 years or older. While rehabilitation of older bridges can 
extend the lifespan of that structure beyond the 50-year design life, the aging of Idaho bridges is of 
concern. Over 17% of local bridges in Idaho are posted for load weight restriction or in poor condition. 
While posted or poor bridges are not unsafe for the traveling public, it indicates that a bridge needs 
maintenance, rehabilitation, or sometimes replacement. The rating means there is some component of 
the bridge that may restrict the normal traffic and may limit some of the commercial truck traffic, 
thereby potentially impacting the movement of goods and emergency vehicles. Traffic will continue to 
increase with Idaho’s projected growth. Increased pressure will be placed on existing bridges in Idaho to 
support this growing traffic load. 

BRIDGE PROGRAM 
The LHTAC Federal-aid Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Bridge Program provides funds for the 
replacement and rehabilitation of local bridges on the Federal-aid classified system or off-system. The 
local match requirement for bridges on the Federal-aid system is 7.34%; there is no match for off-system 
bridges. In-kind work (non-cash work performed by the Sponsor) is not permitted towards the match 
contribution. Applications for bridges not on the Federal-aid system do not require a local match.  The 
funds are awarded through the Local Federal-aid Program administered by LHTAC. 

The prioritized list of applications from the 2024 application cycle is anticipated to enter construction in 
FY29 & FY30. Only one project application per jurisdiction will be accepted each application cycle. This 
bridge program was created in past federal highway bills with the addition of a dedicated off-system 
program in Infrastructure Investment in Jobs Act (IIJA). The current level of funding is based on 2022 
funding levels. Due to limited funds, LHTAC will only program $3M or less toward construction cost.  Any 
construction cost that exceeds the $3M programmed amount will be covered by the LHJ.  Consideration 
for additional program funds may be approved at the discretion of the LHTAC Council. The local 
jurisdiction can provide additional funds above and beyond the match requirement for larger projects. If 
the LHJ does not submit a plan to cover construction costs over $3M the application will be deemed 
ineligible for Federal-aid bridge funding. Leading Idaho Local Bridge Program funds cannot be used for 
additional funds or as project match. 

1.2 USE OF FUNDS 

Successful applicants are awarded funds for a project based on estimated costs. LHTAC will make every 
effort to cover cost over-runs; however, the applicant is ultimately responsible for costs exceeding the 
estimate. 

Bridge funds are to be used on bridges. The bridge must be in the National Bridge Inventory (NBI) 
Database, which requires the bridge be longer than 20 feet and it must carry a public road. 

Please note: Guidelines from FHWA mention that no more than 10% of Bridge Funds should be spent on 
approaches.  

DRAFT



 
 

Bridge Application: Page 3 
 

BRIDGE 
1.3 ELIGIBILITY

In order to qualify for Bridge Funds, the project should fall into one of the 3 categories: 
 Replacement: Bridge should be in poor condition (deck, superstructure, and/or substructure, or culvert), 

or bridges with width less than approaching roadway. 
 Rehabilitation: Bridge should be in fair or poor condition 
 Preservation: Bridge should be in good or fair condition  

 
Rules of thumb to consider: 

 If the bridge was constructed before 1980 it was probably not designed for loads in today’s vehicle 
fleet.  Sometimes a bridge can be strengthened to handle modern loads but often it becomes 
uneconomical to do so, making replacement the optimal choice. 

 If a bridge is only 1-lane wide and 2-lanes are needed for traffic demands, some bridges can be 
widened while others are more difficult to widen.  Bridges made of beams and girders can sometimes 
be widened by adding more girders.  Trusses often cannot be widened without significant cost. 

 In general, the older a bridge is, and/or the worse its condition is in terms of severity or extent on the 
bridge, replacement is often the most economical choice. 

 If a rehabilitation project cost starts to exceed half the cost of replacing the bridge, then it is usually 
more economical in terms of overall life cycle cost to just replace the bridge. 

 Sometimes rehabilitation can be the optimal choice if a problem is isolated or limited to a few key 
areas or members on a bridge.   

 Local Highway Jurisdictions (LHJ) are encouraged to engage with LHTAC staff and request a desktop 
review of bridges they are considering for this program. A consultation with LHTAC’s Scott Wood is 
available to review the Bridge Inspection Report and consider treatment options prior to application 
submission. Call LHTAC at (208) 344-0565 or email Scott at swood@LHTAC.org.  

 It is far cheaper to maintain bridges that are currently in good or fair condition. Currently, LHTAC funds 
are limited in terms of how many preservation projects can be done.  Local jurisdictions are encouraged 
to undertake preservation projects using their own staff and resources.   

 Local jurisdictions are encouraged to have an asset management list/program/system to prioritize the 
conditions of bridges to identify those needing maintenance, preservation, or replacement. LHTAC 
may be able to provide some limited technical advice in terms of selecting appropriate products and 
work methods when a local agency wants to undertake its own preservation project.  

 
1.4 SELECTION PROCESS  

 
Applications are available online at LHTAC.org/Programs/federal-aid/Bridge/ beginning in October. Local 
jurisdictions identify the project and gather all required supporting documents to apply. Applications are 
submitted to LHTAC through a formal project application process due in January. Project applications are 
reviewed and ranked by LHTAC Staff and Council. A prioritized list of projects is presented to the LHTAC 
Council for approval in March. 
 
The top-ranking projects will then be screened by LHTAC staff or a designee with a site visit. These visits will 
confirm the details of the application and validate a project to move forward for adoption to the Idaho 
Transportation Investment Program (ITIP). 
 
 
 

DRAFT



Bridge Application: Page 4 

BRIDGE 
 The Idaho Transportation Board approves a draft ITIP in June. The draft ITIP is open for public comment 
during the month of July. The Idaho Transportation Board approves the ITIP that fall, usually in the month of 
September.  Approved projects are then “programmed” and begin with project development (environmental 
evaluation & design) commencing in the fiscal year shown in the ITIP.  Once design is completed, right-of-way 
acquisition may occur and finally construction occurs in the fiscal year shown in the ITIP. 

These applications are read, evaluated, and scored by staff and council members. Every year we receive 
many applications, so please review the application requirements and submit the information requested. The 
applicant should be mindful of the scorer’s time and efforts to provide the best review and scores as 
possible. 

DRAFT



 
 

Bridge Application: Page 5 
 

BRIDGE 
2. APPLICATION CHECKLIST 

 
2.1 CHECKLIST AND SUBMITTAL DEADLINE  

 
Have you included? (Please do not include the application instructions) 

 
 1. LHTAC 2024 Bridge Application Cover Sheet Answer all the questions and organize backup 

information in the same order as questions are asked so the package is easy to read and easy to 
score 

 2. ITD 2435 - Local Federal-aid Project Request Signed by an ELECTED OFFICIAL 

 3. ITD 1150 - Project Cost Summary Sheet 

 4. Vicinity Map (See Sample) 

 5. LHTAC 2024 Bridge Application Score Sheet and supporting documents 

 6. Include a written statement explaining the need for this project as part of your transportation 
network (One page maximum-See Sample) 

 7. Include a minimum of four (4) photos of the bridge to support your application 

 8. Resolution (See Sample) 

 9. Most current Bridge Inspection Report  

 10. Proof of notification of application to MPO (for applicants within an MPO) 

 
Only one application can be submitted per jurisdiction. 
 
Applications cannot be faxed or emailed. 
 
No spiral bound (or similar) applications will be accepted - please staple or binder clip applications. 
Remember to submit 3 copies and the signed original complete application package.  
 
SUBMITTAL DEADLINE 

 Deadline Date: Completed application must be received by LHTAC’s office, located at 3330 Grace 
Street, Boise, ID 83703, no later than 4:00 p.m. (MST) on Thursday, January 18, 2024 or 
postmarked dated by January 18, 2024. Include 3 copies and the signed original.  

 
Note: All the above items must be included, or the application will be considered incomplete and rejected. 
Please contact LHTAC’s Scott Wood at (208) 344-0565 or by email at swood@LHTAC.org if you have any 
questions.  

  

DRAFT



Bridge Application: Page 6 

BRIDGE 
2.2 LHTAC FY24 BRIDGE APPLICATION COVER SHEET INSTRUCTIONS  

1. Project Title: The title which you, as the sponsor, give the project.  It can be the name of a street or
roadway, or it can be a commonly used name of the project location.  The Federal Highway
Administration also wants the SMA or STC number in the project title (See IPLAN), if functionally
classified.

2. Local Highway Jurisdiction: Enter the city or jurisdiction name, mailing address and the CONTACT person
who we should call if we have questions regarding the project application.

3. Location of Project: Federal funds may only be used on a bridge carrying a local public roadway. The
segment code and SMA or STC number should be used.  There will be no classification number for
off-system bridges. The Project Termini should be the common ends of the project whether it is at
the intersection of crossroads or, for instance a bridge, the common termini beginning and ending
should be listed.  Provide “logical” termini.  If the milepost is determined it should be shown as well.
And finally, the length of the project should be listed in miles.

4. Bridge Info: You can find this information on the Bridge Inspection Report or visit LHTAC’s online
interactive map at https://gis.lhtac.org/bridges.

A. The name of the crossing should be the common name used.
B. The existing Bridge Key number is found on the Bridge Inspection Report that you are

supplied by the Idaho Transportation Department on an annual or biannual basis.  Remember
that a “bridge” for this particular program must have a span of greater than 20 feet.

5. The STBG-Bridge Program treats bridges on the Federal Highway System differently than those off it.
Projects for bridges on the Federal Highway System require a 7.34% local match. Off-system projects
do not require a match.

6. Relationship to Other Projects: This section requests information as it relates to other projects in the
area; particularly if yours is tying in with another state project or another Local Highway Jurisdiction.
Mark the appropriate square.  If you know the name of the other project and the year it is to be
constructed, providing this important information is necessary and helpful.

7. Speed Limit: Please list the speed limit over this bridge. This is listed on the Bridge Inspection Report.

8. Public safety is an essential service the public expects from your jurisdiction. A bridge that is no
longer available as a primary route for first responders will receive additional consideration.

9. Title VI is included in the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Federal-aid projects require compliance with
this act.  The Idaho Transportation Department provides information and training to assist in local
jurisdiction plan development.

DRAFT



Bridge Application: Page 7 

BRIDGE 
3. APPLICATION
3.1 LHTAC FY24 BRIDGE APPLICATION COVER SHEET

1. Project Title:
2. Local Highway Jurisdiction (name and mailing address):  ________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________
*Contact name: ________________________________________________
Phone: _______________________________________________________
Email: _________________________________________________________
*Please list the person from your LHJ we should call if we have any questions on this project application.

3. Location of Project: (Also attach a Vicinity Map)

__________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

4. Bridge Information:

a. Name of crossing, i.e., over what roadway or waterway does the structure cross?

b. Existing bridge #: ____________________________

5. Is this bridge on the Federal Highway System?

Yes No

6. Does this project have a possible relationship to other projects? _____ No ____Yes (Describe Below)

__________________________________________________________________________________

Phased: Yes (If yes, indicate the name and year/s of the related) 

Project: ___________________________ Year: ________ 

No 

7. What is the speed limit of the roadway over the bridge? ______________ MPH

8. Is this an Essential Service Route? _____ No ____Yes (Check all items below that apply)
Emergency services route to: 

___ Fire Station ___ School ___ Garbage Route 
___ Hospital ___Postal Route ___ Other ____________________ 

9. Does your jurisdiction have a Title VI Plan that complies with 28 CFR 35.105 regarding Americans with Disabilities
Act and complying with 23 CFR 200, Civil Rights Title VI Program? _____ No ____Yes
Who is the point of contact for your plan? ___________________________________________ Instructions

Merritt Bridge Repairs

Bonner County Road & Bridge

1500 Hwy 2 Suite 101 Sandpoint ID 83864

Matt Mulder

208-255-5681 ext 1

matt.mulder@bonnercountyid.gov

Merritt Bridge - Wisconsin Street, over the Pend Oreille River adjacent to Priest River ID.

Directions: From Hwy 2 in Priest River, turn south on Wisconsin Street and go 1/4 mile to the bridge.

Merritt Bridge - Wisconsin Street over the Pend Oreille River
20615

✔

25

✔

✔

Alyssa Clark, HR Director

DRAFT



Bridge Application: Page 8 

BRIDGE 
1. Under Character of Proposed Work, mark appropriate boxes when work includes Bridge Approaches in addition to a Bridge. 
2. Attach a Vicinity Map showing the extent of the project limits.
3. Attach an ITD 1150, Project Cost Summary Sheet. 
4. Signature of an appropriate local official is the only kind recognized. 

Note: In Applying for a Federal-Aid Project, you are agreeing to follow all of the Federal Requirements which can add substantial time and cost to the development of the 
Project. 

Sponsor (City, County, Highway District, State/Federal Agency) Date 

Project Title (Name of Street or Road) F.A. Route Number Project Length Bridge Length 

Project Limits (Local Landmarks at Each End of the Project) 

Character of Proposed Work (Mark Appropriate Items) 
Excavation Bicycle Facilities Utilities Sidewalk 

Drainage Traffic Control Landscaping Seal Coat 

Base Bridge(s) Guardrail

Bit. Surface Curb & Gutter Lighting 
Estimated Costs (Attach ITD 1150, Project Cost Summary Sheet) 

Preliminary Engineering (ITD 1150, Line 1)             $  

Right-of-Way (ITD 1150, Line 2)  $ 

Construction (ITD 1150, Line 18)  $ 

Preliminary Engineering By: Sponsor Forces Consultant 

Checklist (Provide Names, Locations, and Type of Facilities) 

Railroad Crossing 

Within 2 miles of an Airport 

Parks (City, County, State or Federal) 

Environmentally Sensitive Areas 

Federal Lands (Indian, BLM, etc.) 

Historical Sites 

Schools 

Other 

Additional Right-of-Way Required: None Minor (1-3 Parcels) Extensive (4 or More Parcels) 

Will any Person or Business be Displaced: Yes No Possibly 

Standards Existing Proposed Standards Existing Proposed 

Number of Lanes Roadway Width 
(Shoulder to Shoulder) 

ft. ft.

Pavement Type Right-of-Way Width ft. ft. 

Sponsor’s Signature Title 

Additional Information to be furnished by the District 

Functional Classification Terrain Type 20 ADT/DHV 

3.1.1 ITD 2435 Local Federal-Aid Project Request

Bonner County Road & Bridge 12-14-23

Merritt Bridge Repairs 1089ft

East and west ends of the Merritt Bridge over the Pend Oreille River.

X
X

382,000

0

2,388,000

X

Priest River Airport, 0.7 miles away

Bonner Park West, 0.14 miles away

Pend Oreille River

Priest River Middle School and High School 0.5 and 0.87 miles away, respectively. 

X
X

2 2

Concrete Deck      Epoxy coated concrete

28 28

N/A N/A

ARTERIAL River 3300

Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners

23

DRAFT



Bridge Application: Page 9 

BRIDGE 
3.1.2. ITD 1150 (Revised for LHTAC use) Project Cost Summary Sheet
Round Estimate to the Nearest $1,000

Key Number Project Number Date 

Location District 

Segment Code Begin Mile Post End Mile Post Length in Miles 

Previous ITD 1150 Initial or Revise To 
1a. Preliminary Engineering (PE) [5% of line 15 + 16a +16b] 

1b. Preliminary Engineering by Consultant (PEC)  [20% of line 15 + 16a +16b] 

2. Right-of-Way: Number of Parcels Number of Relocations 

3. Utility Adjustments: Work Materials By State By Others 

4. Earthwork

5. Drainage and Minor Structures

6. Pavement and Base
7. Railroad Crossing:

Grade/Separation Structure
At-Grade Signals Yes No 

8. Bridges/Grade Separation Structures:

New Structure Length/Width _________ (see instruction on next page) 

Location ___________________________________________________________ 

Repair/Widening/Rehabilitation Length/Width _________ (contact LHTAC to estimate cost) 

Location ___________________________________________________________ 

9. Traffic Items (Delineators, Signing, Channelization, Lighting, and Signals)
10. Construction Traffic Control (Sign, Pavement Markings, Flagging, and Traffic Separation)

11. Detours

12. Landscaping

13. Mitigation Measures
14. Other Items (Roadside Development, Guardrail, Fencing, Sidewalks, Curb and Gutter,  C.S.S.) 

15 Cost of Construction [Lines 3 through 14] 

16a. Mobilization [10 % of line 15] 

16b.  Contingency [15% of lines 15 + 16a] 

17. Construction Engineer and Inspections (CE&I) [25% of lines 15+ 16a + 16b]

18. Total Construction Cost [Lines 15 + 16a + 16b + 17]

19. Total Project Cost [Lines 1 + 1b + 2 + 18]

20. Project Cost Per Mile  N/A N/A 
Prepared By: 

0 0
0
0
0
0
0

0

36x1089ft
1,310,000

Merritt Bridge

Matt Mulder, PE

200,000 

1,510,000

151,000
249,000

478,000
2,388,000

382,000

2,770,000

20615 12-14-23

Merritt Bridge, Wisconsin Street over Pend Oreille River, Priest River ID 1

0.2 mi0.2 0.4

DRAFT



Bridge Application: Page 10 

BRIDGE 
Form 1150 Line 8 – Estimating Bridge and Culvert Costs 
Use this as a guide if additional resources are not available. 
Bridge: 

1. Please report your existing bridge length (ft) __1089___ and width (ft) ___36___.  These are found on
your Bridge Inspection Report as Item (49) Structure Length and Item (52) Width Out to Out.

2. The new bridge length should be estimated at 20% longer than existing, rounded up to the nearest
10’.  New bridge length (ft) ___N/A_______.

3. The new bridge should be assumed to be 36’ wide (2 lanes + shoulders + shy distances) on all rural
roads, unless the applicant can justify a single lane bridge is sufficient (22’ wide).  If more than 2 lanes
are needed, typically this would be in an urban area, then assume 15’ width for each vehicle lane as
this width accounts for sidewalk and barrier width. New bridge width (ft) = __N/A_______.

4. Multiply line 2 by line 3 to compute the deck area. New bridge deck area = ____N/A_________
square feet.

5. If the bridge length is less than 140’ then use the concrete bridge unit cost. If greater than 140’ in
length then use the steel bridge unit cost.

a. Concrete girder bridge = $450/square foot of deck area.
b. Steel girder bridge = $550/square foot of deck area.

6. Compute new bridge cost by multiplying line 4 by the appropriate unit cost in 5a or 5b. Then add an
additional $600,000 for engineering and design and $300,000 for roadway approaches. Estimated
bridge construction cost $______N/A_________.  Note this figure is for planning purposes only. See
disclaimer below.

Culvert: 
1. Please report your existing culvert span (ft) ___N/A____ and culvert height (ft) __N/A____.  These

are found on your Bridge Inspection Report.
2. Multiply the numbers in line 1 together to compute your existing culvert opening area in ___N/

A____ square feet.
a. Add 10% to this figure and round up to nearest 10 square feet to compute your proposed

culvert opening area in ___N/A___ square feet.
3. Report your existing culvert length (ft). _____N/A______.  This is found on your bridge inspection

report.
a. The new culvert should be 10% longer than existing, rounded up to nearest 5’.  New culvert

length (ft) is __N/A____.
4. The unit cost to build culverts is $45/square foot of opening/linear foot of culvert
5. Multiply line 2a, 3a and 4 to compute the estimated culvert construction cost $_____N/A_______.

Note this figure is for planning purposes only. See disclaimer below.
Note: these are estimated new construction costs for only the structure (substructure, superstructure, and 
deck).  It does not include the other roadway items that are listed on the ITD-1150 form. 

Disclaimer: This is a planning level estimate only and not the actual cost.  The planning level cost estimate is 
intended to ensure all applicants are calculating costs in a uniform manner for the comparison of evaluating 
applications.  It is by no means an indication of the optimal structure type, material choice, or actual cost.  As 
the project is designed consideration of project specific constraints, environmental factors, and site specific 
considerations will influence bridge and culvert choices. 

Unit cost data source:  ITD Bridge Design LRFD Manual, Chapter 16 - Estimating.  Article 16.1 Preliminary Structure Cost Estimate and 
Article A16.1 Exempt Items for Cost Estimate (June 2018). 

DRAFT



DRAFT



Bridge Application: Page 14 

BRIDGE 
3.3 LHTAC FY24 BRIDGE APPLICATION SCORE SHEET 

Sponsor: ___Bonner County Road & Bridge___________________________________________
Project Name: ___Merritt Bridge Repairs   ____________________________ 
Total Project Cost:___$2,777,000_________________________________________________________ 

  Y     N Pts Available LHTAC Use 
1a. Provide a ½ page description of the proposed bridge project. Include the benefit 
of the project to the community and the LHJ, the current condition of the bridge, any 
safety concerns, and if the existing bridge meets the community’s needs. 

1b. Provide a ½ page description of the economic impact the bridge crossing has in 
the area.  Discuss freight and commerce use and route criticality to the community. 

0-20

0-15

2. Condition items found on the inspection Bridge Inspection Report. Look for the
Item (##) on the report that corresponds to these and report the codes.

   1-15

3. Load rating and service items found on the Bridge Inspection Report. Look for the
Item (##) that corresponds to these and report the values.

a. Bridge Posting (70) _____5________
If (70) is less than 5, fill in the # on the
applicable signs.

b. ADT (29) _______3300___________________
c. Truck ADT (109) ____5%_______________
d. Detour Length (19) _____12 miles______________
e. Scour Critical (113) ______5 stable____________

1-5

1-5
1-5
1-5
1-5

4. Has your Local Highway Jurisdiction received LHTAC funding previously?
If so, what program and what year did your jurisdiction last receive funding through

           __LRHIP Emergency Funds__________________________ LHTAC?  2023_
    Year          Program 

1-5

5. Are you involved with an active multi-jurisdictional transportation
group? (include first page of minutes or attendance for the last 1-2
years of meetings)
Was your project ranked in the top 3 projects for your group?
List examples of cooperation with other public/private agencies which improve
efficiency in maintaining your roads. (List - 1-page max)
Include up to 3 letters of support for your project.

0-10

6. Has there been a desktop review with an LHTAC Engineer?
Up to 5 points are given based on application format, completeness, and site
visit/coordination with LHTAC staff including Jurisdiction Project Resolution.

1-5

7. Is there a plan to cover the estimated construction cost?
ITD Form-1150 Line 18 ____$2,388,000_______________
If over $3M, provide a ½-page explanation of any partnerships with other
agencies or funding sources.

1-10

Total Possible 105 

Condition Culvert (62 if applicable) _______ 

 Condition Deck (58) ____6___ 
Condition Super (59) ____6__ 
Condition Sub (60) _____5___ 

Or 

X

X

X

X

X

DRAFT



Bridge Application: Page 15 

BRIDGE 
3.4 LHTAC FY24 BRIDGE APPLICATION RATING CRITERIA 

Please use this guide as a reference. Application packages will be scored based on the following scales. 
QUESTION PTS SUGGESTED SCORING 

1a. Provide a ½ page description of the proposed bridge project. 
Include the benefit of the project to the community and the LHJ, the 
current condition of the bridge, any safety concerns, and if the existing 
bridge meets the community’s needs. 

1b. Provide a ½ page description of the economic impact the bridge 
crossing has in the area.  Discuss freight and commerce use and route 
criticality to the community. 

15-20
8-14
0-7

11-15

6-10
0-5

Excellent description including agency & financial benefit + 
safety  
Adequate description of need/benefit 
Poor description of need, need/benefit 

Excellent description of economic/commerce impact and 
route criticality 
Adequate economic/commerce impact and route criticality 
Poor economic/commerce impact and route criticality 

2. Condition of items found on the Bridge Inspection Report. Look for
the Item (##) on the report that corresponds to these and report the
codes.

Condition Deck (58)   
Condition Super (59) 
Condition Sub (60)  

1-5
1-5
1-5
or

1-15

 Poor scores 5, Fair scores 3, Good worth 1 point 
 Poor scores 5, Fair scores 3, Good worth 1 point 
 Poor scores 5, Fair scores 3, Good worth 1 point 

 Poor scores 15, Fair scores 6, Good scores 1 points 
3. Load rating and service items found on the Bridge Inspection
Report. Look for the Item (##) on the report that corresponds to these 
and report the values.

a. Bridge Posting (70)
b. ADT (29)
c. Truck ADT (109)
d. Detour Length (19)
e. Scour Critical (113)

1-5
1-5
1-5
1-5
1-5

Codes of 0-1 scores 5, Code 2-4 scores 3, Code 5 scores 0 
points 
400+(5), 300-399(4), 200-299(3), 100-199(2), 0-99(1) 
10%+ scores 5, 4-9% scores 3, 0-3% scores 1 point 
10+ miles scores 5, 4-9 miles scores 3, 0-3 miles scores 1 
point 
Codes 0-3 scores 5, Codes 4-5 or U scores 3, Codes 6-9 or N 
scores 1 point 

4. Has your Local Highway Jurisdiction received LHTAC funding
previously?
If so, what program and what year did your jurisdiction last receive
funding through LHTAC?

5 
4 
3 
2 
1 

Never 
Over 5 years ago 
3-5 years ago
1-2 years ago, other than bridge funds
1-2 years ago, bridge funds

5. Are you involved with an active multi-jurisdictional transportation
group? (include first page of minutes or attendance for the last 1-2
years of meetings)
Was your project ranked in the top 3 projects for your group? List
examples of cooperation with other public/private agencies which
improve efficiency in maintaining your roads. (List - 1-page max) 
Include up to 3 letters of support for your project.

5-10

4

2-3
0-1

Involved w/ multi-group, ranked, share resources, minutes, 
examples, plus 3 quality letters of support 
Involved w/ multi-group, ranked, share resources, minutes, 
examples 
Involved with multi-group, share resources 
Involved with multi-group or shared resources 

6.Has there been a desktop review with an LHTAC Engineer?
Up to 5 points are given based on application format,
completeness, and site visit/coordination with LHTAC staff
including Jurisdiction Project Resolution.

5 

3 

1 

Application in proper order including all documents and 
desktop review 
Application in proper order but missing some documents or 
desktop review 
Application includes instructions and extra materials 

7. Is there a plan to cover the estimated construction cost?
ITD Form-1150 Line 18 ___________________
If over $3M, provide a ½-page explanation of any partnerships with
other agencies or funding sources.

10 

6-8

1-5

ineligible 

Project is under $3M, or project over $3M with an approved 
budget allocation from LHJ to cover the extra. 
Project is over $3M with a funding plan in place to cover the 
extra. 
Project is over $3M with identified eligible supplemental 
funding opportunities. 
Project is over $3M with no other funding or plan set. 

Condition Culvert (62) 
 

Or 

DRAFT



BONNER COUNTY ROAD & BRIDGE                  
1500 Hwy 2 Ste 101 •  Sandpoint, ID  83864  •  Phone: (208) 255-5681 – Fax: (208) 263-9084 

 

Grant Narrative 
 

A. The Merritt Bridge over the Pend Oreille River is Bonner County’s longest (1089ft) and most 
vital bridge.  The Pend Oreille Lake and River are defining features of Bonner County, and 
constitute major obstacles for the transportation network.  Within the County, there are two 
ways across these water bodies; one being ITD’s The Long Bridge south of Sandpoint, and the 
other being The Merritt Bridge south of Priest River.  All traffic going north or south through the 
county must cross one of these two bridges, with this bridge carrying about 3300 vehicles per 
day and providing access for all businesses and residences south of the river to reach the City of 
Priest River and Hwy 2 on the north shore. The bridge is currently 2 lanes wide and adequately 
meets the community’s needs for the foreseeable future. 
Constructed in 1956 and then upgraded in 1988 with a new superstructure, the bridge’s 
substructure, which consists of 168 steel piles, is in need of its next rehabilitation to extend its 
life. The underwater inspection of the steel pilings indicates coating loss, corrosion, and rust 
nodules that need to be addressed. Currently, the pilings are indicated to be in fair condition 
while the superstructure is in satisfactory condition. However, discussions with Scott Wood at 
LHTAC indicate that based on predictive models, the substructure is anticipated to drop to poor 
condition by 2025. Investing in a cleaning and pile wrap repair now will extend the 
substructure’s life and avoid a total bridge replacement being necessary in the nearer future. 
The concrete deck of the bridge would also benefit from an epoxy coating on the driving surface 
at this time to protect and extend the life of the concrete and rebar of the superstructure and is 
proposed as part of this project. With the amount of salt used on nearby Hwy 2 during winter 
months, an epoxy coating will protect the bridge’s concrete and rebar from the salt tracked 
down the road from the highway. 

B. The economic impact of this bridge cannot be understated. The nearest detour route is 13.8 
miles, going into Washington State and crossing the river in Newport, or 49 miles to east to The 
Long Bridge on Hwy 95 by Sandpoint.  Accidents frequently cause hours-long shutdowns on The 
Long Bridge, including 5 times in 2023, forcing all of the Hwy 95 traffic to either wait, or take the 
49 mile detour option to The Merritt Bridge to continue their journey; locals know to head to 
this bridge as the fastest option. The Merritt Bridge tends to be the only viable detour route far 
more frequently than needing a detour route itself.  
Logging and lumber mills are one of the keystones of Bonner County commerce, and one of the 
two largest lumber mills in the County are situated directly at the southern end of The Merritt 
Bridge.  A regular stream of logging trucks cross the bridge from Hwy 2 to reach the mill; so 
many that the stop signs at the intersection at the end of the bridge are arranged to allow the 
free flow of logging trucks into the mill without stopping.  Closure of the bridge would be a 
serious detrimental impact to the mill and a letter of support from Stimson Lumber is included. 
Most residents in the southwest corner of Bonner County likely work in either the City of Priest 
River or Sandpoint, and depend on this bridge to reach work most effectively. Those living on 
the north side of the river use this route to most efficiently reach the Spirit Lake, Rathdrum, and 
Coeur’D’Alene areas. 

DRAFT



Examples of Multi-Jurisdictional Cooperation 
Bonner County is an active member of the Bonner County Area Transportation Team (BCATT), an 
organization which meets once a month to coordinate work between all of the road maintenance 
jurisdictions, users, and service providers in the county.   

Specific examples of recent cooperation between Bonner County (BC) and other entities include: 

• McGhee Rd Pedestrian Path – Bonner County and the City of Ponderay are working 
cooperatively for a grant for a pedestrian path which serves the City’s sports field facilities, and 
a section of which is within the County’s ROW. 

• Big Creek Bridge Construction Project – BC worked with the US Forest Service, US Fish & 
Wildlife, and the Kalispell Tribe of Indians to replace a large culvert under a County road which 
was a barrier to fish passage with a new bridge.  Bonner County managed the bidding and 
construction while the other partners funded design and construction costs. 

• N Boyer Rd & West Pine Street – A paving and chip seal project which covered both Bonner 
County and Independent Highway District (IHD) jurisdictions. Both LHJ’s provided manpower 
and equipment in nearly equal shares to accomplish the work in conjunction with a paving 
contractor. 

• Pine Street Culvert Repair – A repair of a culvert which sits on the line between BC and City of 
Sandpoint jurisdiction, ~$90,000. Bonner County managed the project and the City helped 
financially. 

• Great Northern Road Rebuild – BC and the City of Sandpoint worked together to grind the gravel 
road and do an ATB and pavement.  

• Baldy Mountain Rd Rebuild - BC assisted the City of Sandpoint by lending our grinder machine 
and crew to grind the asphalt road and rebuild it within city limits. 

• Clagstone Rd Asphalt Paving – BC worked with Lakes Highway District to place new pavement on 
Clagstone Road, which stretches through both jurisdictions. 

• City of Clark Fork – Agreement with BC to exchange sand for access to the municipal water 
supply. 

• US Forest Service Maintenance Agreement – Maintenance agreements exchanging responsibility 
on 10+ roads. 

• City of Priest River Maintenance Agreements – Roads which cross both jurisdictions have 
agreements in place regarding maintenance responsibilities to work more efficiently where 
possible. 

• City of Old Town Maintenance Agreements - Roads which cross both jurisdictions have 
agreements in place regarding maintenance responsibilities to work more efficiently where 
possible. 

• Pend Oreille County Maintenance Agreement - Roads which cross both jurisdictions have 
agreements in place regarding sharing maintenance responsibilities to work more efficiently. 
 

DRAFT



                                     BCATT Meeting Notes 
                                        January 25, 2023 
 
 
 
 
Presiding: Commissioner Like Omodt-Chair, Nancy Lewis-Vice Chair 
               Susan Kiebert-Sec., Marcella Nelson-Clerk 
 
 
 
BCATT Members/Alternates in Attendance: 
ITD                       Jim Thompson (Board), Damon Allen, Carrie Ann Hewitt  
LHTAC-  Megan Kautz, Construction Manager 
Bonner County       Jason Topp, Matt Mulder  
Athol                     Lori Yarbrough,Kevin Foster  
BNSF    Serena Carlson 
IHD                       Mel Bailey, Ryan Luttmann 
Clark Fork              Russ Schenck 
East Hope              Don Wells 
Hope                     Bryan Quayle 
LPOSD #84            James Koehler, Erin Billings 
Dover                    Mayor George Eskridge, Clare Marley 
Kootenai   Mayor Nancy Lewis- Vice Chair 
Oldtown                 Bryan Quayle 
Ponderay   Phil McNearney, Dan Tadic 
Priest River   Jeff Connolly,Rex Rolichek 
Sandpoint   Amanda Wilson 
SPOT    Donna Griffin 
BCEMS   Absent 
Trail Mix   Don Davis 
PCFC                      Liz Johnson-Gebhard 
 
Others Present: Marc Kilmer- Sen Risch; Caleb Davis- Cong. Russ Fulcher; Jake 
Garringer-Gov’s Office Phone; Dave Butzier-AECOM (Phone), Randy Stoll. 
  
The meeting was called to order at 10:45 by Secretary Kiebert who then introduced 
our new Chair, Commissioner Luke Omodt, and the returning Vice Chair, Nancy 
Lewis. The attendance was taken verbally by the Vice Chair, in order to identify 
those who were attending in person and virtually, and any changes in 
representation (none). 
Secretary Kiebert then mentioned the start of Constr. Coord. later this spring, and 
the procedure to be followed by member jurisdictions in securing BCATT Letters of 
Support for funding. Chairman Omodt reviewed the agenda with no 
additions/corrections noted by members.  There were no changes in member 
representation. 
 
 

DRAFT



                                     BCATT Meeting Notes 
                                        March 22, 2023 
 
 
 
 
Presiding: Commissioner Luke Omodt-Chair, Nancy Lewis-Vice Chair 
               Susan Kiebert-Sec., Marcella Nelson-Clerk 
 
 
 
BCATT Members/Alternates in Attendance: 
ITD                       Damon Allen, Marv Fenn, Carrie Ann Hewitt, Megan Jahns  
LHTAC-   Excused  
Bonner County       Comm. Luke Omodt, Jason Topp, Matt Mulder  
Athol                     Absent  
BNSF    Absent 
IHD                       Ryan Luttmann 
Clark Fork              Russ Schenck 
East Hope              Michel Wilcox 
Hope                     Bryan Quayle 
LPOSD #84            James Koehler, Erin Billings 
Dover                    Clare Marley 
Kootenai   Mayor Nancy Lewis 
Oldtown                 Bryan Quayle 
Ponderay   Steve Geiger  
Priest River   Jeff Connolly,Rex Rolichek 
PR School Dist.       Absent 
Sandpoint   Amanda Wilson, Mayor Rognstad 
SPOT    Donna Griffin 
BCEMS   Absent 
Trail Mix   Don Davis 
PCFC                      Liz Johnson-Gebhardt 
 
Others Present: Caleb Davis- Cong. Russ Fulcher; Jake Garringer-Gov’s Office 
(phone); Dave Butzier-AECOM (Phone) 
  
The meeting was called to order at 10:45 by Chairman Omodt, and attendance was 
taken verbally by the Vice Chair, in order to identify those who were attending in 
person and virtually, and any changes in representation (none). 
Chairman Omodt reviewed the agenda with no additions/corrections noted by 
members.  There were no changes in member representation. 
 
(MSU)The minutes of the January 25 were approved on a motion by Matt 
Muldar,seconded by Clare Marley, with no one dissenting 
 
 

DRAFT



                                     BCATT Meeting Notes 
                                         April 26, 2023 

Sandpoint City Hall 
 
 
 
Presiding: Commissioner Luke Omodt-Chair, Nancy Lewis-Vice Chair 
                                Susan Kiebert-Sec. 
 
 
 
BCATT Members/Alternates in Attendance: 
ITD                       Marv Fenn, Carrie Ann Hewitt, Board Member Jim Thompson 
LHTAC-   Amanda Lamott (By Telephone) 
Bonner County       Comm. Luke Omodt, Matt Mulder  
Athol                     Absent  
BNSF    Absent 
IHD                       Mel Bailey (By Telephone) 
Clark Fork              Sharon Banning 
East Hope              Don Wells, Michel Wilcox 
Hope                     Bryan Quayle 
LPOSD #84            Erin Billings 
Dover                    George Eskridge, Clare Marley 
Kootenai   Nancy Lewis 
Oldtown                 Bryan Quayle 
Ponderay   Steve Geiger, Phil McNearney  
Priest River   Jeff Connolly, Rex Rolichek 
PR School Dist.       Absent 
Sandpoint   Amanda Wilson, Mayor Rognstad, Amy Tweeter 
SPOT    Donna Griffin 
BCEMS   Absent 
Trail Mix   Don Davis 
PCFC                      Liz Johnson-Gebhardt (by Telephone) 
 
Others Present: Caleb Davis- Cong. Russ Fulcher; Marc Kilmer- Sen.Risch, 
 Carrie Logan, Mollie O’Reilly. 
  
The meeting was called to order at 10:45 by Chairman Omodt, and attendance was 
taken verbally by the Vice Chair, in order to identify those who were attending in 
person and virtually, and any changes in representation (none). 
Chairman Omodt reviewed the agenda with no additions/corrections noted by 
members.  There were no changes in member representation. 
 
(MSU)The minutes of the March 22 were approved on a motion by George 
Eskridge, seconded by Clare Marley, with no one dissenting. 
 

 

DRAFT



1 
 

 
 

BCATT Meeting Notes 
May 27, 2015 

 

Voting Members in Attendance: Marv Fenn-ITD, Glen Bailey-Chair, Carol Kunzeman- Ponderay, Tim Closson- IHD, 
Marion Johnson- SPOT, Gordon Bates- Bonner County, Nancy Lewis- Kootenai, Bryan Quayle- Hope /Oldtown, 
 Carrie Logan- Sandpoint, Neal Hewitt- Dover, Greg Snow- Priest River 
 
Non-Voting Members in Attendance: Don Davis- ITD, Eric Olson- Ponderay, Phil McNearney- PCDC, Molly O’Reilly-IWBA, 
George Eskridge- Dover, Clif Warren- NIB  
 
Others in Attendance: Clare Marley-Bonner County, Aaron Qualls- Sandpoint, David Suhr- DEA,  Laura Winter- RYA,  
Karen Roetter- Sen. Crapo, Sid Smith-Sen. Risch , Serena Carlson- Carlson Strategic Communications, Carlos Suarez- 
Suarez Engineering, Christopher DeLorto-HDR, Ross Lane- BNSF 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The meeting was called to order at 11:05am by Chairman Glen Bailey at the 2nd Floor Auditorium of the PSB Financial 
Center. 

(MSU Logan, Johnson) Meeting Notes of April 29, 2015, were approved as distributed 
 
April Financial Report- Reviewed and Acknowledged 
 
Old Business   
 

•  Aaron Qualls and Don Davis briefly reported on the US 2/SH200 Subcommittee Application to  New Mobility 
West.  Ther were reminded to get some content to Susan shortly so that the BCATT Letter which has already 
been approved can be written and submitted  with the application. 

• Carrie Logan reported that the Downtown Traffic Revision Project  is moving ahead. The federal dollars for the 
5th Avenue section  are FY2016  Funds and the City will fund the 2-way Local Streets’design- engineering with 
URA Dollars.  

• Federal Lands Access Program Grant Applications- The County has received no official word on these 
applications. 

 
New Business 
 

• Marion Johnson of SPOT reported that SPOT is undertaking a 5-year Strategic Plan which is being facilitated by 
Carole Richardson, PE. There will be three strategic planning sessions with cabinet as well as stakeholders and 
should be completed later this summer. 

• Marv Fenn announced that the ITD Board advanced a number of maintenance and rehab projects statewide at 
their meeting on May 21.  Distrist 1 received one pavement restoration project in Benewah County and a  list of 
bridge deck projects including Cocollala Creek Bridge and Elmira Bridge in Bonner County. He also reported that 
WH Pacific will undertake the design of the 5th Avenue Traffic Revision Project. 

• The Bonner County Fair which is set for August 11-15  will include the BCATT Booth which will be shared with 
the Bonner County Trails group. The sign- up sheet will be passed out at the next meeting.  

 
 
 

DRAFT



DRAFT



                                     BCATT Meeting Notes 
                                      August 30, 2023 

Dover City Hall 
 
 
 
Presiding: Commissioner Luke Omodt-Chair, Nancy Lewis-Vice Chair 
                                Susan Kiebert-Sec. Marcella Nelson- Clerk 
 
 
 
BCATT Members/Alternates in Attendance: 
ITD                       Excused 
LHTAC-  Absent 
Bonner County       Comm. Luke Omodt, Jason Topp  
Athol                     Absent  
BNSF   Absent 
IHD                       Absent 
Clark Fork              Sharon Banning 
East Hope              Michael Wilcox 
Hope                     Bryan Quayle 
LPOSD #84            James Koehler 
Dover                    George Eskridge, Clare Marley 
Kootenai   Nancy Lewis 
Oldtown                 Bryan Quayle 
Ponderay   Steve Geiger, Phil McNearney 
Priest River   Jeff Connolly 
PR School Dist.       Brandon Moon
Sandpoint   Brandon Staglund 
SPOT    Donna Griffin 
BCEMS   Cameron La Combe 
Trail Mix   Excused 
PCFC                     Excused 
 
Others Present: Mark Kilmer- Sen Risch, Rep. Mark Sauter, Jake Garringer-Gov’s 
Office, Caleb Davis- Rep. Fulcher, Ryan Luttman PE, Marcella Nelson- Clerk 
 
  
The meeting was called to order at 10:45 by Chairman Omodt, and attendance was 
taken verbally, in order to identify those who were attending in person and any 
changes in representation (none). 
Chairman Omodt reviewed the agenda with no additions/corrections and deferred  
Consideration of the Minutes of July 26 was moved to next meeting due to omission 
of key reports by ITD and presentation by Bryan Martin of Ardurra Engineering the 
on US 95 Options south of the Long Bridge at the July Meeting. 
 
  

DRAFT



STIMSON LUMBER COMPANY 

12 Old Priest River Rd 

Priest River, ID 83856 

 

 

December 21, 2023 

 

 

To Whom it May Concern: 

 

My name is David Balfanz and I am the Plant Manager at Stimson Lumber’s Priest River, Idaho sawmill.  I 

would like to pledge my support for the Bonner County Road and Bridge Department’s proposed repairs 

of the Merritt Bridge. 

   

The Merritt Bridge is critical infrastructure and vital for the continued economic viability of our rural 

community.  As the town of Priest River’s largest employer, Stimson depends on the bridge to connect 

our employees, raw materials and finished product to the surrounding areas.  Many of our nearly 100 

employees commute to work from Priest River, Sandpoint and other areas north of the Pend Oreille 

River and rely on this bridge daily.  Without this bridge, our operation is cut off from the town that we 

call home.  The next nearest river crossing is more than seven miles downriver and would require a 25-

minute detour to get to Priest River.  We also purchase logs from private landowners as well as state 

and federal timberlands within a 50-mile radius of our mill.  We rely on this bridge as the primary 

transport route for any logs north of the river.  The Merritt bridge is also the primary conduit for our 

shipments of finished lumber.  After leaving our site and crossing the bridge, this lumber is shipped to all 

regions across the continental United States, both via rail and highway.  Having a well-maintained and 

structurally sound bridge is crucial for Stimson to help support our local economy.    

 

From a longevity standpoint, my experience in manufacturing has shown that proactive maintenance is 

crucial to the success of any operation.  Preventative, pre-failure maintenance work is the difference 

between operating smoothly, efficiently and cost effectively or suffering major breakdowns that end up 

costing magnitudes more time and money than if they had been addressed early on.  Infrastructure is no 

different.  The maintenance issues should be addressed now before they become more costly and time 

consuming down the road.   

 

I believe the continued operation of the Merritt Bridge is vital for the connectivity and economic well-

being of our community and surrounding areas.  Ensuring that the bridge doesn’t fall into a state of 

disrepair is crucial for the long-term sustainability of this critical infrastructure.  I am a strong believer in 

supporting the communities in which we live and work, and this bridge helps to ensure that we’ll be able 

to continue to do so for many years to come.    

 

Please feel free to reach out to me with any questions or if you’d like to discuss further. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

David Balfanz 

Plant Manager 

Stimson Lumber – Priest River, ID 

208-661-4670 

DRAFT



DRAFT



RESOLUTION NO.  24-____ 
 

BONNER COUNTY 
FY2024 Federal Aid Bridge Grant Application 

 
WHEREAS, the Bonner County Commissioners desire to repair and replace 

deficient bridges, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Merritt Bridge over the Pend Oreille River is in need of some 

repairs and maintenance, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) offers a 

grant program to seek federal aid funding for bridge repair and replacement projects, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Bonner County Road & Bridge Department has prepared a grant 

application to submit this bridge repair project for consideration, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County 

Commissioners of Bonner County, Idaho, that the grant submittal for this project be 
approved and submitted to LHTAC for consideration, which will NOT require the typical 
7.34% match from Bonner County if awarded because of the recent federal Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Law money that has obligated additional funding to these kinds of local 
“off-system” (off the federal highway system) projects. 
 

The foregoing was duly enacted as a Resolution of the Board of County 
Commissioners of Bonner County, Idaho, on the 2nd day of January, 2024. 

 
 
 

BOARD OF BONNER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
___________________________   
Luke Omodt, Chairman  
 
___________________________   ATTEST:  Michael Rosedale 
Asia Williams, Commissioner 
       By_______________________ 
___________________________         Deputy Clerk 
Steven Bradshaw, Commissioner      
 

DRAFT



IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
UNDERWATER INSPECTION REPORT 

Bridge Key: 20615 Structure Name: 95770A 5.95 

Feature Intersected: PEND OREILLE RIVER Location: PRIEST RIVER SCL 

Facility Carried: STC 5770 Admin Jurisdiction: 1700 – BONNER COUNTY 

Macs Seg: 003810 Milepost: 005.737 

Longitude: W 116o 54’ 

District: 1 

31” Owner: BONNER COUNTY Latitude: N 48o 10’ 40” 

County: 017 BONNER Year Built: 1956 

RPT_10/2014 1 of 3 

Proposed UW Insp. Freq: 60 months Previous UW Insp. Freq:  60 months Previous UW Insp. Date: 9/20/2011 

Reason for Proposed Change 
to UW Insp. Freq: Not applicable 

Items to Inspect: Bents 1 though 20 and Towers 1 through 6 

Foundation Type: Steel Shell Piles 

Scour Countermeasures: Yes No If Yes, Describe: 

Structural Details: Reinforced concrete pile caps supported on steel shell piles. 

Plans Available:  General Plan and 
Elevation 

Substructure Unit 
Details 

Repair/Rehabilitation 
Drawings 

No Plans 
Available 

Hydraulic Features & Characteristics: 
No significant hydraulic features at this bridge. 

Inspection Method: Wet/Dry Suit Scuba Surface Supplied Air Other 

Comments: 
No comments 

Inspection Level: Level I Level II Level III 

Comments: Level I inspection over 100 percent of each underwater element. Level II inspection over 10 percent of each underwater 
element.  

Specialized Equip: None required 

Flow control located upstream or immediately downstream of structure? Yes No 

Contact to flow control agency required to adequately inspect structure? Yes No 

Flow Controlling Agency: None  

Contact: 

Phone: 

Bridge Contact: 

Phone: 

Team Leader (Print & Sign): Jordan T. Furlan Inspection Date: 9/26/2016 

INSPECTION INFORMATION AND PROCEDURES 

DRAFT



IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
UNDERWATER INSPECTION REPORT 

Bridge Key: 20615 Feature Intersected: PEND OREILLE RIVER 

RPT_10/2014 2 of 3 

Diver 1 (TL): Jordan Furlan Diver 3: Kyle Branham 

           Diver 2: Michael Banasiak   Diver 4: 

Describe Diving Hazards: 

Heavy timber and construction debris at Bent 16 and Tower 6. 
Heavy boat traffic in area. 

Boat Required:  Yes  No 

Access/Launch Site: Public Boat Ramp at NE shore. 

Waterline Ref. & Elev: Bottom of cap at downstream end of Bent 1 (El. = 75.1 ft) 

Distance to Waterline: 13.6 ft Waterline Elevation: 61.5 ft 

Time Spent on Insp: 4 hours 

Air Temp: 70° F Weather: Sunny/Clear 

Water Temp: 60° F Water Visibility: 15 ft 

Min. Depth at Substructure Unit(s):  2.4 ft (Bent 20) Max. Depth at Substructure Unit(s):  28.4 ft (Tower 3) 

Flow Velocity:  0.5 fps 

Flow Direction: East to west 

Inspection Preparation Notes: 

No comments 

Diving Hazards: 

Debris Yes No 

Swift Current Yes No 

Black Water Yes No 

Deep Dive Yes No 

Constricted Waterway Yes No 

Soft/Unstable Channel Bottom/Banks Yes No 

Watercraft/Vessel Movements Yes No 

Other:  Yes No 

DRAFT



IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
UNDERWATER INSPECTION REPORT 

Bridge Key: 20615 Feature Intersected: PEND OREILLE RIVER 

RPT_10/2014 3 of 3 

*Quantities listed above only represent the portions of the element that were inspected as part of the underwater inspection.

INSPECTION FINDINGS 

GENERAL NOTES (Shoreline Conditions, Channel Conditions, Special Details, Construction Operations, Etc.) 

The shorelines consisted of light to moderately vegetated embankments with no significant erosion observed. 

Heavy accumulation of timber and construction debris at Bent 16 and Tower 6.

UNDERWATER ELEMENT CONDITION STATES 

Current Condition State (Gray) /Proposed Condition State (white) 

Elem. Description Qty* Units 1 2 3 4 

225 Steel Pile 160 EA 0 0 160 10 0 150 0 0 

1000: Corrosion 160 EA 0 0 160 10 0 150 0 0 

Remarks on Underwater Element Condition States: 

225/1000: Steel piles exhibited loss of coating from 15 feet below the waterline to the channel bottom with 3/4 inch diameter typical and 2 inch 
max diameter rust nodules over 50 percent of the pile surface area and pitting up to 1/8 inch deep. Steel piles exhibited random areas of coating 
loss and light surface corrosion, typically 6 inches in diameter, from 2 feet above the waterline to 15 feet below the waterline. 

NBI CODING 

Item 
Current Condition 

Code 
Proposed Condition 

Code 
Item 

Current Condition 
Code 

Proposed 
Condition Code 

60 (Substructure) 5 5 62 (Culvert) N N 

61 (Channel) 8 8 113 (Scour) 8 8 

Remarks on NBI Coding: 

60 – Steel piles exhibited pitting up to 1/8 inch deep from 15 feet below waterline to channel bottom. 

MAINTENANCE RECOMMENDATIONS 

Elem. Description Priority 

DRAFT



 

UNDERWATER INSPECTION 
Bridge Key 20615 • STC 5770 over Pend Oreille River 
Near Priest River, ID • September 2016     

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Photograph 1: Overall 

View of Bridge, Looking 

Southeast. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Photograph 2: View of 
Typical Bent, Looking 
Northwest

DRAFT



 

UNDERWATER INSPECTION 
Bridge Key 20615 • STC 5770 over Pend Oreille River 
Near Priest River, ID • September 2016     

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Photograph 3: View of 

Typical Tower, Looking 

Northeast. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photograph 4: View of 

Typical Tower at Main 

Channel, Looking 

Northeast.  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

DRAFT



 

UNDERWATER INSPECTION 
Bridge Key 20615 • STC 5770 over Pend Oreille River 
Near Priest River, ID • September 2016     

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Photograph 5: View of 

Deflected Horizontal 

Brace at Bent 5, 

Looking North.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Photograph 6: View of 

Broken Horizontal 

Brace Connection at 

Bent 16, Looking 

Northeast.  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

DRAFT



 

UNDERWATER INSPECTION 
Bridge Key 20615 • STC 5770 over Pend Oreille River 
Near Priest River, ID • September 2016     

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Photograph 7: View of 

Cracking and Section 

Loss at Southeast 

Corner of Tower 3.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Photograph 8: View of 

Typical Steel Condition 

Below Water.  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

State 1 State 4State 3State 2Elm/Env Total QtyElement Description Units

12/3 sq.ft

Reinforced concrete deck is in satisfactory condition. Underside of deck has transverse cracks with 

efflorescence at construction joints. Wear with exposed aggregate and minor spalling and cracking 

throughout driving surface of the deck. Aggregate remains secure.

 39202 Reinforced Concrete Deck  19202  20000  0  0 

1120/3 sq.ft

Underside of deck has transverse cracks with efforescence at construction joints.

 2000 Efflorescence/Rust Staining  0  2000  0  0 

1190/3 sq.ft

Wear with exposed aggregate and minor spalling and cracking throughout driving surface of the deck. 

Aggregate remains secure.

 18000 Abrasion/Wear(PSC/RC)  0  18000  0  0 

107/3 ft

(5) Weathering steel wide flange girders are in satisfactory condition. Girders have bolted diaphragm to 

girder connections at substructure units and at mid spans that are in satisfactory condition. All spans are 

single spans. Weathering steel protective coating has areas of coating failure primarily over bent caps. West 

exterior girder and cross bracing at bent 25 have pack rust. Bottom flange and cross frame on the west side 

at bents 13 and 17 have surface corrosion and pitting with up to 5 percent section loss. Stripped bolt at 

cross bracing between bents 30 and 31.

 5446 Steel Open Girder/Beam  5415  11  20  0 

515/3 sq.ft

Weathering steel protective coating has areas of coating failure primarily over bent caps.

 35300 Steel Protective Coating  35270  0  30  0 

1000/3 ft

West exterior girder and cross bracing at bent 25 have pack rust. Bottom flange and cross frame on the 

west side at bents 13 and 17 have surface corrosion and pitting with up to 5 percent section loss.

 30 Corrosion  0  10  20  0 

1020/3 ft

Stripped bolt at cross bracing between bents 30 and 31.

 1 Connection  0  1  0  0 

215/3 ft

Reinforced concrete abutments with integral wingwalls are in good condition. The south abutment is 

undermined due to erosion. Vertical hairline cracks in both abutments.

 82 Reinforced Concrete Abutment  72  10  0  0 

1130/3 ft

Vertical hairline cracks in both abutments.

 10 Cracking (RC and Other)  0  10  0  0 

225/3 (EA) 168 Steel Pile  0  17  150  1 

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Concrete filled, coated steel shell piles. 30 bents with 5 piles in each bent and 2 bents with 9 piles in each 

bent totaling 168 piles. The horizontal member between Piles 4 and 5 at Bent 5 was deflected down 4 inches 

out of plane. The lower inner south steel cross bracing at the south bent of Tower 2 was cut off at Pile 3. The 

steel cross bracing along the upstream face of Tower 4 was deflected 6 inches to the west approximately 6 

inches at the cross bracing intersection. The deflection appeared to be caused by impact damage. The 

horizontal brace connection at Bent 16 was detached at Pile 5. Steel piles had random areas of coating loss 

and surface corrosion from 2 feet above the waterline to 15 feet below the waterline. Areas of coating loss 

were typically 6 inches in diameter. From 15 feet below the waterline to the channel bottom, steel piles had 

coating loss and corrosion on 50 percent of the pile surface area with rust nodules typically 3/4 inch in 

diameter with a maximum diameter of 2 inches. Cleaned steel had pitting up to 1/16 inch deep. Bent 9, Pile 5 

was cracked 1.5 feet above the waterline at the cross bracing, measuring up to 1/2 inch wide. The crack 

wrapped 2/3 of the circumference around the pile's west perimeter. Concrete inside the pile was exposed. 

See underwater inspection report dated 9/24/2021.

515/3 sq.ft

Steel piles had random areas of coating loss and surface corrosion from 2 feet above the waterline to 15 feet 

below the waterline. Areas of coating loss were typically 6 inches in diameter. From 15 feet below the 

waterline to the channel bottom, steel piles had coating loss and corrosion on 50 percent of the pile surface 

area. See underwater inspection report dated 9/24/2021.

 19400 Steel Protective Coating  3200  3200  0  13000 

1000/3 (EA)

Steel piles had random areas of coating loss and surface corrosion from 2 feet above the waterline to 15 feet 

below the waterline. Areas of coating loss were typically 6 inches in diameter. From 15 feet below the 

waterline to the channel bottom, steel piles had coating loss and corrosion on 50 percent of the pile surface 

area with rust nodules typically 3/4 inch in diameter with a maximum diameter of 2 inches. Cleaned steel had 

pitting up to 1/16 inch deep. See underwater inspection report dated 9/24/2021.

 167 Corrosion  0  17  150  0 

1010/3 (EA)

Bent 9, Pile 5 was cracked 1.5 feet above the waterline at the cross bracing, measuring up to 1/2 inch wide. 

The crack wrapped 2/3 of the circumference around the pile's west perimeter. Concrete inside the pile was 

exposed. See underwater inspection report dated 9/24/2021.

 1 Cracking  0  0  0  1 

234/3 ft

Reinforced concrete pier caps at each bent. Bent cap 13 has 3 areas of spalls that are 4 inches in diameter. 

Bent cap 17 has a small spall. Bent cap 27 has a patched area that has cracking, delamination, and spalling 

on the east end. Bent cap 21 has a spall on the north face. Bent cap 24 has 3 spalls on the south face. Bent 

cap 14 has 4 feet of rock pocket spalls with exposed corroded rebar. Bent caps 4, 7, and 8 have exposed 

rebar on the east side of the cap. Bent caps 17, 21, and 24 have a spall with exposed corroded rebar. Bent 

cap 20 has 4 spalls with exposed corroded rebar. Bent 13 has a spall 8 inches in diameter with exposed 

corroded rebar. Intermittent vertical hairline cracks throughout all bent caps. Large diagonal crack at 

southeast corner of bent 15.

 991 Reinforced Concrete Pier Cap  908  78  5  0 

1080/3 ft

Bent cap 13 has 3 areas of spalls that are 4 inches in diameter. Bent cap 17 has a small spall. Bent cap 27 

has a patched area that has cracking, delamination, and spalling on the east end. Bent cap 21 has a spall on 

the north face. Bent cap 24 has 3 spalls on the south face.

 18 Delamination/Spall/Patched Area  0  13  5  0 

1090/3 ft

Bent cap 14 has 4 feet of rock pocket spalls with exposed corroded rebar. Bent caps 4, 7, and 8 has 

exposed rebar on the east side of the cap. Bent caps 21 and 24 have a spall with exposed corroded rebar. 

Bent cap 19 has 4 spalls with exposed corroded rebar. Bent 13 has a spall 8 inches in diameter with 

exposed corroded rebar. Bent cap 17 has a spall with exposed corroded rebar.

 15 Exposed Rebar  0  15  0  0 

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

1130/3 ft

Intermittent vertical hairline cracks throughout all bent caps. Large diagonal crack at southeast corner of 

bent 15.

 50 Cracking (RC and Other)  0  50  0  0 

302/3 ft

Compression joints at both abutments and piers 3, 8, 13, 16, 17, 20, 25, and 30. Concrete end diaphragm at 

bent 28 in bay 3 has 11 inch x 28 inch spall below the compression joint. Compression joints are impacted 

with dirt and debris.

 360 Compression Joint Seal  0  360  0  0 

2350/3 ft

Compression joints are impacted with dirt and debris.

 360 Debris Impaction  0  360  0  0 

310/3 each

Steel girders bear on steel plates and 1 1/2 inch elastomeric bearing pads. Bearing plate is missing nuts at 

bent 29 on the west side.

 330 Elastomeric Bearing  329  1  0  0 

1020/3 each

Bearing plate is missing nuts at bent 29 on the west side.

 1 Connection  0  1  0  0 

330/3 ft

Galvanized steel pedestrian rail on west outside edge is anchored to the top side of bridge deck. Galvanized 

steel protective coating is in good condition.

 1089 Metal Bridge Railing  1089  0  0  0 

515/3 sq.ft

Galvanized steel protective coating is in good condition.

 11580 Steel Protective Coating  11580  0  0  0 

331/3 ft

Reinforced concrete bridge railing on both sides. Horizontal cracking along both east and west bridge rail 

near mid height. Similar sized vertical cracking throughout concrete barriers. Minor spalling near base of 

concrete rail.

 2178 Reinforced Concrete Bridge Railing  0  2178  0  0 

1130/3 ft

Horizontal cracking along both east and west bridge rail near mid height. Similar sized vertical cracking 

throughout concrete barriers. Minor spalling near base of concrete rail.

 2178 Cracking (RC and Other)  0  2178  0  0 DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Additional Information

ROADWAY APPROACHES: Both roadway approaches are paved and have minor settlement and cracking behind both 

abutments.

EMBANKMENTS: Embankments are moderately vegetated and in good condition with no significant erosion observed.

CHANNEL: The channel bottom material at Bents 1-15 and Towers 1-5 consisted of river stones measuring 6 to 8 inches in 

diameter with no probe rod penetration. The channel bottom material at Bents 16 and 17 and Tower 6 consisted of sand with 

up to 6 inches of rod penetration. The channel bottom material at Bents 18-20 consisted of stones and riprap up to 2 feet in 

diameter with no probe rod penetration. Two to three logs measuring approximately 2 feet in diameter were located at the 

channel bottom at the upstream nose of all bents. There was heavy accumulation of timber debris at the upstream nose of 

Bent 16 from the channel bottom up 8 feet and 6 feet off the bent. There was heavy accumulation of construction debris at 

Towers 2 through 6.

SIDEWALKS/CURBS: Concrete broom finish sidewalk is in good condition. 

SIGNS: Hazard markers are down at the southeast and northwest corners of the bridge.

GUARDRAIL: Southwest approach guardrail has severe impact damage at the connection to the bridge rail. Approximately 2 

feet is cracked completely through and spalling. At the southwest end of concrete parapet at connection to bridge rail up to 

1/4 inch wide diagonal cracks. The end of the approach rail at the northwest corner connected to the pedestrian rail was 

removed for sewer plant expansion. End post at northwest corner is sheared off. All posts have checking cracks up to 1/4 inch 

wide.

UTILITIES: Power and phone lines run through concrete parapets on both sides of bridge. 8 inch sewer line under bridge 

between the 1st and 2nd girder from the west side, hanger in span 8 is missing a nut. Overhead utility lines cross over the 

north approach. 

NAVIGATIONAL FEATURES: The south upstream red navigation light and the west navigation lights were not working. Matt 

Mulder with Bonner County was notified about the lights being out on 8/10/21. According to Nathan Demmons with Bonner 

County, the navigational lights are now properly functioning as of 8/14/21.

NOTES: None

OTHER INSPECTIONS PERFORMED: In-depth inspection completed on 8/4/2020 by Rick Smith and Joshua Collins with 

Collins Engineers and Toby Griffin and Rene Leon with ITD using the UBIT to inspect the underside of the deck, steel girders, 

piers, and bearings.

SCOUR REVIEW:

INSPECTION FREQUENCY: N/A

WORK ACCOMPLISHED: Routine maintenance.

LOAD RATING:

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Suggested 

Work AssignmentPriority

Maintenance Recommendations

Recommendation

Local AgencyRepair crack in steel pile at Bent 9. Low

Local AgencyClean gravel from expansion joints and repair joint 

material.

Low

Local AgencyRepair erosion and undermining at the south 

abutment.

Medium

Local AgencySeal all the cracks in the deck. Low

Local AgencyClean and recoat piles. Low

Inspector's Signature: 08/08/2022

Inspector Number and Name: 1031 - Tony Jankowski, Collins Engineers

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

 911 

 3810

  6867

003810

 

 

116° 54' 32.9"

48° 10' 28.5"

Not on Base Network

005.705

STC 5770;WISCONSIN

141057700

Not within City/Town

017 Bonner

District 1

16 Idaho

Inspection Area:

Project Key Number:

Drawing Number:

Segment Other Rte:

Segment Under Rte:

Segment Code:

(99)Border Bridge ID:

(98)Border Bridge Code:

(17)Longitude:

(16)Latitude:

(13b)LRS Sub Route:

(13a)LRS Inventory Route:

(12)Base Hwy Network:

(11)Milepoint:

(7)Facility Carried:

(5)Inventory Route:

(4)Place Code:

(3)County:

(2)District:

(1)State:

IDENTIFICATION CLASSIFICATION

Long Enough

0 Not on NHS

07 Rural Mjr Collector

0 Not a STRAHNET hwy

No || bridge exists

2 2-way traffic

 

0 N/A (NBI)

0 Not part of natl netwo

3 On free road

County Hwy Agency

County Hwy Agency

4 Hist sign not determin(37)Historical Significance:

(22)Owner:

(21)Custodian:

(20)Toll Facility:

(110)Design Natl Network:

(105)Federal Lands Highway:

(103)Temporary Structure:

(102)Direction of Traffic:

(101)Parallel Structure:

(100)Defense Highway:

(26)Functional Class:

(104)Highway System:

(112)NBIS Length:

99.1 ft

1,089 ft

1,089 ft

0.5 ft

0.0 ft

28.0 ft

36.0 ft

28 ft

0 No median

0°

0 No flare

99.99 ft

28.0 ft

99.99 ft

N Feature not hwy or RR

0.00 ft

N Feature not hwy or RR

0.0 ft

0.0 ft(56)Min Lat Underclr Lt:

(55b)Min Lat Underclr Rt:

(55a)Min Lat Underclr Ref Rt:

(54b)Min Vert Underclr:

(54a)Min Vert Underclr Ref:

(53)Min Vert Clr Over Deck:

(47)Total Horiz Clearance:

(10)Vertical Clearance:

(35)Structure Flared:

(34)Skew:

(33)Median:

(32)App Roadway Width:

(52)Width Out to Out:

(51)Width Curb to Curb:

(50b)Curb/Sidewalk Width Rt:

(50a)Curb/Sidewalk Width Lt:

Total Length:

(49)Structure Length:

(48)Maximum Span Length:

GEOMETRIC DATA

1 Concrete-Cast-in-Place

1 Monolithic Concrete

0 None

None(108c)Deck Protection:

(108b)Membrane:

(108a)Wearing Surface:

(107)Deck Type:

 0(46)No. of Approach Spans:

 33(45)No. of Spans Main Unit:

(44a/b)Approach Span Material/Design:

Stringer/GirderSteel

(43a/b)Main Span Material/Design:

STRUCTURE TYPE AND MATERIALS

3 2

Deck Applications

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N/AMPO:

LRS

03810AOH000

5.705163108

Route ID:

Measure:

Route ID Under Rte:

Measure Under Rte:

Route ID 2nd Rte Under:

Measure 2nd Rte Under:

 5.70500 Agency Milepost:

DRAFT

jcollins1
Highlight



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

CONDITION

6 Satisfactory

6 Satisfactory

5 Fair

7 Minor Damage

N N/A (NBI)(62)Culvert:

(61)Channel/Protection:

(60)Substructure:

(59)Superstructure:

(58)Deck:5 MS 18 (HS 20)

80 tons

48 tons

5 At/Above Legal Loads

A Open, no restriction(41)Posting Status:

(70)Posting:

(66)Inventory Rating:

(64)Operating Rating:

(31)Design Load:

LOAD RATING

5 Above Min Tolerable

4 Tolerable

N Not applicable (NBI)

6 Equal Minimum

6 Equal Min Criteria

1 Meets Standards

1 Meets Standards

1 Meets Standards

1 Meets Standards

5 Stable w/in footing(113)Scour Critical:

(72)Approach Alignment:

(71)Waterway Adequacy:

(69)Undrclear,Vert and Horiz:

(68)Deck Geometry:

(67)Structure Condition:

APPRAISAL

 0(28b)Lanes Under:

 3300 

 2019 

5%

12 miles(19)Detour Length:

(109)Truck ADT:

(30)Year of ADT:

(29)ADT:

(28a)Lanes On:  2

5 Waterway(42b)Type of Service Under:

1 Highway(42a)Type of Service On:

1988(106)Year Reconstructed:

 1956 (27)Year Built:

AGE AND SERVICE

1 Not Required

(116)Lift Bridge Vert Clr:

(111)Pier Protection:

98.4 ft(40)Horizontal Clearance:

16.4 ft(39)Vertical Clearance:

Permit Required(38)Navigation Control:

NAVIGATION DATA

31 Repl-Load Capacity

1 Contract

1,089 ft

$9,523,000

$952,000

$14,285,000

 2020 

 4950 

 2039 

YEAR PROGRAMMED:

(115)Year of Future ADT:

(114)Future ADT:

(97)Year of Cost Estimate:

(96)Total Project Cost:

(95)Rdwy Improvement Cost:

(94)Bridge Improvement Cost:

(76)Length of Improvement:

(75b)Work Done By:

(75a)Type of Work:

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

 

9/24/2021

 

8/4/2020

NA

60 months

NA

UBITEquipment Needed:

(e)Confined Space Inspection:

(d)In-Depth Inspection:

(c)Fatigue Detail (OS) Inspection:

(b)Underwater Inspection:

(a)Fracture Critical Detail:

(92)Supplemental Inspections Frequency:

24 months(91)Inspection Frequency:8/8/2022(90)Inspection Date:

INSPECTION

(36)Traffic Safety Features:

(a)Bridge Rail:

(b)Transition:

(c)Approach Rail:

(d)Approach Rail Ends:

(93)Date of Inspections:

(a)FC Inspection Date:

(b)UW Inspection Date:

(c)Fatigue Detail (OS) Date:

(d)In-Depth Date:

(e)Confined Space Date:

48 months

NA

/      HS44.4

/      HS26.7

Speed Limit: 25 MPH

Channel Cross Section Year:

ENVIRONMENTAL

Environmental Concerns: Yes

Swallows.DRAFT

jcollins1
Highlight



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Asphalt:

Granular:

Concrete:

Timber:

 0.0  0.0

 0.0  0.0

POSTING INFORMATION

WEIGHT

N

Load Rating Analysis Recommended

Posting(tons)

Actual

Posting(tons)IR (tons) OR (tons)

 48  80

 36

 61

 70

 60

 103

 

 

  118

01/27/2020

Analysis Complete

WEARING SURFACE and DEAD LOAD INFORMATION

inches

inches

inches

inches

Load Analysis Date:

Load Analysis Required:

  

 

 

 

  

N

N

H Truck

HS Truck

Type3 

Type 3S2 

Type 3-3 

Type3

Type 3S2

Type 3-3 

Axle Limit

HEIGHT

ACTUAL WIDTH POSTING

Height Posting:

Recommended Actual

Single Lane All Vehicles:

Single Lane Trucks/Buses:

 

 

 

 DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Approach looking north.

Overall looking north.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Upstream looking east.

Downstream looking west.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

North abutment looking northwest.

South abutment looking south.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Typical pier and underside looking south.

Typical pier and underside looking north.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Erosion and undermining at the south abutment.

Typical condition of bearings at abutments.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Typical cracks with efflorescence in the deck underside.

Typical cracking in the top of the deck.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Typical abrasion in the top of the deck.

South abutment joint looking east.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Joint at pier 3 looking east.

Joint at pier 8 looking east.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Joint at pier 13 looking east.

Joint at pier 16 looking east.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Joint at pier 17 looking east.

Joint at pier 20 looking east.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Joint at pier 25 looking east.

Joint at pier 30 looking east.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

North abutment joint looking east.

Damage to bridge rail at southwest corner looking east.

DRAFT



Bridge Inspection Report

Idaho Transportation Department

20615Bridge Key:

PEND OREILLE RIVER

95770A    5.95

PREIST RIVER SCL

Bonner County

01

(6)Features Intersected:

Xref Structure Name:

1700

Structure Name:

(9)Location:

Admin Jurisdiction:

District:

STC 5770;WISCONSINFacility Carried(Route):

Settlement in sidewalk at north approach.

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT


	2024-Bridge-Application_DRAFT_FLAT_Compiled.pdf
	ADP9898.tmp
	BOARD OF BONNER COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
	___________________________   ATTEST:  Michael Rosedale





